
 

 

 

Request for Decision  

To: Council File No:   

Meeting Date: April 15th, 2019 Submission Date: April 1st, 2019 

From: Danica Rice, Manager of Planning 

Subject:  OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 3193, 2019.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That Council give first and second readings to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 3193, 2019” - 
a bylaw to modify Temporary Use Permit time length from up to 2 years to up to 3 years.  
  
And That Council set a Public Hearing date of May 6th, 2019 for Bylaw No. 3193. 
 

 Purpose 
The intent of proposed Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 3193, 2019 is to amend the period of 
time that a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) may be issued for, while bringing it into consistency with the Local 
Government Act.  
 
Presently, the City of Duncan Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2030 (OCP) limits TUPs to a 2 year term, 
although they may be renewed once for a total of 4 years. After 4 years, the applicant is required a) to cease 
and desist or b) have secured a rezoning of the property with a Zoning Bylaw Amendment, securing the 
proposed use and or location of the use for the longer term.  
 
This amendment seeks to increase the initial timeframe from 2 years to 3 years with the option to reapply for a 
second term of 3 years, ultimately permitting the TUP for a total of up to 6 years. The proposed timeframe 
brings the OCP into consistency with the Local Government Act as outlined in Attachment 1. 
 
Analysis 
It is recommended that Council continue to employ TUPs as a tool to authorize and consult the public in 
consideration of otherwise unpermitted uses and or location of uses within the City of Duncan. The use of TUPs 
permits the opportunity for the City to test the impacts of a specific use as a pilot study prior to either 
approving or denying a full rezoning application. The process is generally less expensive, poses less risk to the 
municipality and can be a timelier process than a rezoning if passed by Council resolution.  Local governments 
can impose conditions on the issuance of TUPs, including requirements for security, and can revoke TUPs upon 
default.  
 
Notification 
Local governments are required to provide public notice prior to the issuance of a TUP, and can often expect to 
receive useful feedback from neighbours as a result. However, a public hearing is not required if it is in an area 
identified in the OCP, in accordance with section 493(1)(b) of the Local Government Act. The City’s practice is to 
provide an opportunity for public comment on a TUP application and shall be noted on the agenda of the TUP 
being considered. 
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As outlined in Section 921 of the Local Government Act, a local government may issue Temporary Use Permits, permitting 

the use of land or structures that is otherwise prohibited under the City’s Zoning Bylaw. Temporary use permits may 
be issued for a period of up to TWO years and may, upon application, be renewed once for up to a further 
TWO years. 
 
The City’s OCP policy for TUPs is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The proposed amendment will revise Section 6.4 Temporary Use Permits as outlined below and as shown in 
Attachment 2 in order to increase the allowable time frame to be up to 3 years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Financial: 

By amending the OCP, the City will be able to provide a longer trial period 
to a range of businesses within the City. The fee for a TUP application is 
$2000.00 

Policy/Legislation: Official Community Plan, Bylaw No. 2030. 

Strategic Priority: On-going amendments to the Zoning Bylaw and Official Community Plan 
requiring public consultation through public hearing, as per the Local 
Government Act. 

Sustainability: Not Applicable. 

Communication: An OCP amendment requires notification in the newspaper and a public 
hearing in accordance with the Local Government Act.  

6.4 TEMPORARY USE PERMIT POLICIES 
  
As outlined in Section 921 of the Local Government Act, a local government may issue Temporary Use Permits, 
permitting the use of land or structures that is otherwise prohibited under the City’s Zoning Bylaw. Temporary use 
permits may be issued for a period of up to TWO years and may, upon application, be renewed once for up to a 
further TWO years. 
 
6.4.1 Issue temporary use permits within commercial areas if Council is satisfied that:  

 the temporary use is on a trial/ interim basis or a seasonal or occasional use, and where the use does not 
qualify as a home based business;  

 the temporary use does not adversely affect adjacent or surrounding properties in terms of pollution, 
odour, noise, light, traffic generation, parking or loading; and,   

 Issuance of the permit will not establish a competitive advantage to the detriment of businesses 
operating in locations where the use is permitted.  
 

6.4.2 Issue Temporary Use Permits for emergency shelters, as defined in the Zoning Bylaw, provided that 
Council is satisfied that: 

 the applicant has undertaken public consultation in accordance with Section 11.1 of the OCP; and  

 the applicant has provided detailed implementation information, including a description of measures 
that will mitigate any negative impacts that operation of the emergency shelter may have on the 
surrounding commercial and residential neighbourhoods (e.g. hours of operation, cleanup plans for the 
area, supporting agencies, etc.).  
 

6.4.3 Discontinue the temporary use permit upon expiry of the time period authorized. The use of land, 
buildings or structures permitted by the permit shall cease to exist and shall not be considered as a non-
conforming use. 

 
As outlined in Section 921 of the Local Government Act, a local government may issue Temporary Use Permits, 
permitting the use of land or structures that is otherwise prohibited under the City’s Zoning Bylaw. Temporary 
use permits may be issued for a period of up to THREE years and may, upon application, be renewed once for 
up to a further THREE years. 
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Staffing 
Implications: 

The OCP Consolidation Bylaw will require a minor amendment. 

 
ALTERNATE RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council recommend changes to Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 3193, 
2019 prior to giving first and second readings. 
 
Appendices:  
 
Attachment 1: Temporary Use Permits – Local Government Act 
Attachment 2: Proposed Bylaw No. 3193 
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Attachment 1: Temporary Use Permits – Local Government Act 

 

 

 


